Guide to Canadian Nursing Archival Resources

Principal Investigator: Diana Mansell

Funded by:

Canadian Association for the History of Nursing Association canadian pour l'histoire du nursing

This national guide to nursing historical resources is the product of a national survey of nursing resources in Canadian archives, museums, and professional nursing organizations. The project began with a national mail survey to all known archives and museums to determine their nursing archival holdings. Next, various nursing organizations, nursing educational institutions, associte/affiliate nursing groups, and employment agencies were surveyed by telephone and e-mail. The third step was the identification of private and semiprivate records and collections. Finally, the information from these surveys was collated to produce this national guide to nursing historical resource material. The surveys were conducted with the help of research assistant Nicole Brown during the summer of 1999. This guide is made available to nurses and historians studying the history of Canadian nursing, effective May 2002.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. Archives, Associations, Hospitals, Museums, and Nursing Schools	
1. Alberta	1
2. British Columbia	8
3. Manitoba	15
4. New Brunswick	16
5. Newfoundland	18
6. Northwest Territories	20
7. Nova Scotia	20
8. Ontario	22
9. Prince Edward Island	33
10. Quebec	34
11. Saskatchewan	36
12. Yukon	38
13. National Associations	38
II. Hospital and Nursing School Alumnae Associations	42
III. Guides to Archival Resources Already Published	44
IV. Institutions Surveyed That Did Not Respond	46
V. City Index	

I. Archives, Associations, Hospitals, Museums, and Nursing Schools

<u>Alberta</u>

Alberta Association of Registered Nurses (Edmonton, Alberta)

Contact: Lorraine Mychajlunow ph: (780) 4510043 fax: (780) 4523276

email: lmychaj@nurses.ab.ca 11620 - 168th St. Edmonton, Alberta

T5M 4A6

Materials in Possession:

- The collection documents the history, functions, and development of the professional association and professional nursing in Alberta. It includes materials of closely-related organizations, such as schools of nursing, chapters, district and interest group records, and the records of individuals closely connected with the work of the Alberta Association of Registered Nurses. These include correspondence, reports, minutes, registers, directives, announcements, publications, as well as audio materials, such as microfilm, film, audio tapes, records, photographs, and drawings
- There are approx. 100 metres of material which the public has access to. The material is catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Calgary Regional Health Authority Archives (Calgary, Alberta)

Contact: Donna Kynaston ph: (403) 5412192 fax: (403) 2636410 email: donna.kynaston@crha-health.ab.ca 1213 - 4th St. SW Calgary, Alberta

T2R 0X7

Materials in Possession:

- There are records of Calgary's hospitals (General, Holy Cross, Children's, Peter Lougheed, Colonel Belcher, Rockyview, Grace, and Foothills), and of Calgary's Board of Health. There are also some Nursing School, Alumnae Association and volunteer organization records, and records about the history of health care in Calgary from various individuals. Also, there are Carewest and Mountview records.
- There are approx. 460 metres of information which is accessible to the public. The holdings are being catalogued on an ongoing basis and there are finding aids.

City of Calgary Archives (Calgary, Alberta)

Contact: The City of Calgary Archives ph: (403) 2688180 fax: (403) 2686731 email: ccarch@gov.calgary.ab.ca P.O. Box 2100 Station M Calgary, Alberta T2P 2M5

Materials in Possession:

- Board of Commissioners records (i.e. Nurses 1923-1927; Old Nursing Homes) and the City Clerk's Papers (i.e. hospitals). Council minutes are another source of information in these areas, as well as records from other departments.
- There are approx. 1760 metres of civic records in the City of Calgary Archives, that are accessible to the public. The records have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Misericordia Hospital Nursing Archives and Museum (Edmonton, Alberta)

Contact: Claire Lefebvre ph: (780) 4896041 16940 - 87th Ave. fax: (780) 4507500 Edmonton, Alberta T5P 4H5

Materials in Possession:

- School of Nursing Documents
- · Misericordia Documents
- · Artifacts (hospital and nursing)
- Books
- · Photographs
- There are approx. 600 sq. feet of materials in a display area, 80 sq. feet in the office, and 80 sq. feet of materials in a storage area. This archive is brand new (April 24/99) and therefore has not set days or hours of operation yet. When these are established, the materials held here will be accessible to the public. The holdings have been catalogued, and there are finding aids available, once the archives are completely up and running.

Museum of the Regiments (Calgary, Alberta)

Contact: Emma McDonald	ph: (403) 9742869
4520 Crowchild Trail SW	fax: (403) 9742858
Calgary, Alberta. T2T 5J4	

Materials in Possession:

- mainly snippets of information from books in their possession.
- resources are limited at this time, but they are working on building up their collection in the medical/nursing field.
- the public has access to all information Monday Friday, 8:00am 4:00pm. Researchers can contact Jeny Svencicki ph: (403) 9742852 for information. All information has been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Glenbow Library and Archives (Calgary, Alberta)Contact: Douglas E. Cassph: (403) 2684203130 - 9th Ave. SEfax: (403) 2326569

Calgary, Alberta T2G 0P3

Materials in Possession:

- all materials are on their database http://www.glenbow.org
- There are approx. 250 nursing-related artifacts in the cultural history collection. These can be accessed by contacting Sandra Morton-Weizman at 2684201.

Provincial Archives of Alberta (Edmonton, Alberta)

Contact: Claude Roberto ph: (780) 4270669 fax: (780) 4274646

email: croberto@mcd.gov.ab.ca

12845 - 102 Avenue

Edmonton, Alberta

T5N 0M6

- · 70.414 Legislative Assembly, 1908 1960
- 70.19 Mrs. Sterritt's reminiscences as a district nurse in Northern Alberta
- 70.447 correspondence, pamphlets, news paper clippings, passport, wills and photographs of Olive Ross, an Alberta nurse, 1895 1960.
- 70.427 Legislative Assembly, records of minutes, financial records, and correspondence of the Executive Council, 1905 1962.
- 71.111 Department of Public Health
- 71.106 Hospitals Services Commission, records concerning hospitals throughout the province.
- · 73.467 photographs of army nursing 1914 1945.
- 73.309 Hospital service Commission, various reports presented to the 50th (1968), 53rd (1971), and 54th (1972) annual convention of the Alberta Hospital Association.
- 82.200 Department of Health and Social Service Programs Branch files regarding nursing education in Alberta.
- 75.241 Department of Public Health, report of the nursing education survey committee, 1961 1963.
- 86.54 photographs, news clippings, letters, and publication of Madeline (Jaffery) Morrison, a nurse during W.W.I. (1890 - 1976).
- F85.66 Department of Social Services and Community Health, Alberta Hospitals, Ponoka, 1914 1982.
- 88.553 Executive Council; records, petitions, and resolutions, 1910 1962
- 88.170 Department of Community and Occupational Health, records related tuberculosis control in Alberta, 1958 - 1960, files on the Aberhart Memorial Sanitarium, Alberta Tuberculosis Association, employment conditions for nursing consultants, and the Tuberculosis control programme, 1950 - 1956.
- F89.464 Department of Health, Family Health Services Branch, 1918 1974.
- 89.389 Canada Army, photos of nurses in front of St. Stephen's College, University of Alberta, 1913.
- 97.36 Department of Health, Local Health Services records from Northern Alberta,

1959 - 1976.

- F94.314 Department of Health, Community Health Division records created by the Deputy Minister of the Community Health Division.
- F95.475 Advanced Education and Career Development, Department of Program Coordination Branch - annual reports, meeting minutes, evaluations, member lists, and complete projects, 1975 - 1989.
- F95.475 Advanced Education and Career Development, Department of Program Coordination Branch - records created by the Alberta Foundation for nursing Research of the Department of Advanced Education.
- 96.277 medical lab. technicians by the US War Department, 1941 1944.
- 96.277 the papers of Mrs. Gwen Collip (nee Manning) she worked as a nurse and medical lab. technician for the US Department of Engineering in Dawson Creek, B.C. photos included.
- · 73.51 Legislative Assembly, session papers, 1961 1969.
- 70.245 Department of Health, reports and accounts of the Air Ambulance Service, 1958
- 1965, and files concerning the training of nursing aids, 1957 1963.
- 88.326 Department of Community and Occupational Health nursing assistant registry created by the former Department of Social Services listing names of registered nursing assistants, 1977.
- 85.26 Department of Health and Social Service Programs, Advanced Education and Manpower reports regarding various training programs or courses for nurses, nursing assistants, and occupational health workers.
- 91.472 Department of Professions and Occupations Bureau, Solicitor General correspondence, reports, regulations, and guidebooks regarding the registered nursing assistants profession, 1948 - 1986.
- F89.291 Department of Family and Social Services canceled nursing assistants files 1972; registered nursing aides, 1973 1979.
- 91.534 Department of Advanced Education, Program Coordination Branch records concerning the education of nurses and nursing assistants.
- 91.487 Public Affairs Bureau three filmstrips on the training of nurse's aids in Alberta.
- 91.284 Department of Advanced Education, Program Coordination Branch files concerning nursing or nursing assistant education programs.
- 95.191 Department of Advanced Education, Program Coordination Branch files on post-secondary educational programs for nurses.
- 75.312 photos of the nurses graduating from the Edmonton General Hospital in 1913.
- 92.103 Department of Advanced Education, Program Planning and Development Branch - files relating to approved, government-funded innovative projects undertaken to improve the quality of education within post-secondary institutions, 1983 - 1985.
- 86.230 Department of Advanced Education, Health and Social Service programs Branch
 files relating to nursing programs at Alberta universities, colleges, and institutions, as well as files of a more general nature concerning nursing education.
- 71.384 yearbooks of student nurses at Misericordia Hospital, Edmonton, 1968 1971.
- 88.89 Department of Advanced Education, Health and Social Service Programs Branch

- coordination and allocation of new training programs for nurses, including letters-of-intent, program proposals, and letters of final approval.

- 87.75 Department of Advanced Education, Health and Social Service Programs Branch
 minutes, agendas, status reports, news releases, and other records of the nursing manpower, 1981 1983.
- 85.241 published reports concerning matters of public health in Alberta.
- 87.129 files relating to nursing programs at Alberta universities.
- 91.534 records created by the Health and Social Services Programs Branch concerning programs for the education of nurses and nursing assistants, 1985.
- 88.335 records concerning the coordination and allocation of new training programs for nurses, including letters of intent, program proposals, and letters of final approval and approval-in-principle, 1982.
- 76.93 photos and short biography of Mrs. Olga Freifeld, a pioneer nurse in Peers, Alberta.
- 95.191 files concerning the coordination of post-secondary educational programs for nurses.
- 70.226 Nursing Sisters Association of Canada, Edmonton Unit minutes, correspondence, reports, and photos, 1931 1967.
- 76.145 Mrs. Olga Freifeld; photos, letters, and articles concerning her career as a public nurse in Russia and Peers, Alberta, 1920's 1972.
- 89.188 V.O.N. Edmonton Branch board minutes, annual and staff minutes, clippings, and photos of the Edmonton branch, 1912 1982.
- 75.470 East of the Smoky and District Nursing Association minutes, correspondence, financial accounts, and other records, 1924 1968.
- 90.431 records concerning the allocation and coordination of a new training program for nurses. Includes program proposals and other basic correspondence concerning the training of nurses at various schools of nursing.
- 90.200 V.O.N. Alberta Branch, minutes, 1956 1959, scrapbook of letters and clippings, 1955-1958, and photos.
- 91.372 "A study of the Activities of Nursing Personnel in Ten Health Unites and One city Health Department in the Province of Alberta", 1968.
- 91.284 files concerning nursing or nursing assistant education programs, 1981 1986.
- 68.201 Department of Education, exams, record charts, graduation certificates and other material from the Nursing Orderly School in the Alberta Vocational Centre, 1967.
- 70.224 Financial records from the Health Department including expenditure ledgers, 1937 - 1962, vaccine and sera ledgers, 1930 - 1943 and 1945 - 1947, and Municipal Nursing Agreements, 1961 - 1962.
- 80.350 Disaster Services Agency records
- 75.454 scrapbooks containing newspaper clippings relating to the 'flu pandemic of 1918', public health nursing 1920 1926, public health discoveries 1926 1927; correspondence, pamphlets, reports, articles, clippings, statistics, minutes, etc. pertaining to the Department of Public Health, including the Child Welfare Committee.
- 82.260 records regarding the training of nurses in Alberta, 1972 1977.

- 82.200 files regarding nursing education in Alberta, 1971 1976.
- 84.22 records regarding individual nursing health units and municipal nursing services in Alberta, 1944.
- 83.406 files consisting of correspondence, minutes, or materials on training programs for ambulance attendants, nursing orderlies, nurses, and occupational health workers, 1976 - 1977.
- 85.16 records regarding the professional development of nursing in Alberta, including newsletter, and annual reports of the Public Health Nursing Branch, 1930 1976.
- F89.464 information about Municipal Nursing Services Districts and Numiciapl Nurses, 1918 1974.
- F90.338 records concerning such matters as immunization and vaccines, the rat eradication programme geriatrics, and mosquito control, 1930 1976.
- 86.576 Department of Advanced Education, Deputy Minister's Office nursing education, refugees, immigration, manpower needs, etc.; and minutes, reports, and/or correspondence relating to the Council of Ministers of Education.
- 90.315 records created by the Department of Social Services and Community Health relating to Home Care planning, budgeting, financial control, home care nursing, and general home care programming, 1973 1981.
- F96.132 records on extended care facilities, early intervention programs, vital statistics, home care, speech pathology and audiology, Alberta Aids to daily Living, alcohol and drug abuse, and suicidology, 1974 1988.
- 91.285 Alberta Foundation For Nursing Research research grant case files, 1983 1984.
- · 88.621 Various pamphlets, brochures, handbooks, and memorabilia, 1920 1945
- 72.63 Royal Alexandra Hospital, Edmonton invitation to a dance honouring the nurses' graduating class, April 8, 1931.
- All of these materials are available for public use in the reference room of the archives. These materials have been catalogued (numbers next to each holding) and there are finding aids available.

Taber & District Museum Society (Taber, Alberta)

Contact: Debbie Carrico ph: (403) 2235708 4702 - 50th St. fax: (403) 2232291

Taber, Alberta T1G 2B6

Materials in Possession:

mostly newspaper clippings

YANICK news director of Public Health Nursing - BEW Health Unit Hooked on Health - Margaret Ratsliff - Public Health Nurse Nightingale Pledge - Nursing then and now - rules in 1887 and a typical day in 1998 75th Anniversary of AARN Nursing in the 90's Nurses get a chance to upgrade education - U. of Athabasca distance education A day in the life of a nurse - job is demanding Salute to nurses of 60 years ago Area nurses pioneered health services Beside manner - Saudi Stylee - Delores Wright AARN Newsletter - a patient has the right to expect.... Taber nurses honoured by AB. Assoc. of Registered Nurses Never be afraid to try - Lu Gunther returns to nursing after 20 years. Nurse helps patients returning home - discharge planning Nursing sister Ellen Hall (Noble) W.W.I Nurses offer more than needles Materia Medica for nurses - study of medicines Surgical nursing - Russell Howard

- Nursing Aides:
 - First groups of RNAs graduate
 - Nursing assistance program aids many
 - Nursing grads go out in style
- · Information on the Taber hospital, the Health Unit and physical therapists in Taber
- Women's Institute records have information about health clinics in the early days.
- All newspaper clippings are scattered throughout the archives, but are all catalogued for easy access, and there are finding aids. The archives are open to the public time varies depending on the time of year.

University of Calgary Archives (Calgary, Alberta)

Contact: Lisa Atkinson ph: (403) 2207271 fax: (403) 2103075

email: latkinso@ucalgary.ca 12 MLT 2500 University Dr. NW

Calgary, Alberta

T2N 1N4

- University of Calgary Faculty of Nursing records, 1967-1992.
- Foothills Hospital School of Nursing Fonds, 1961 1995 (predominantly 1969-1995)
- Foothills Nursing Students' Association Fonds, 1966 1993 (predominantly 1966 70, 1989 93)
- There is a list attached to the survey with further information.
- There is about 25 metres of material that is accessible to the public. The University of Calgary administrative records are closed for 25 years from date of creation, though. Access may only be permitted depending on the type of material required and the reason for the search. Some of the school of nursing records are closed due to confidential nature, though most are open.
- The material has been catalogued, and there are finding aids

University of Calgary Library, Special Collections (Calgary, Alberta)

Contact: Apollonia Lang Steele email: asteele@ucalgary.ca 2500 University Dr. NW Calgary, Alberta T2N 1N4 Materials in Possession:

- Holy Cross School of Nursing Fonds. 1910-1920, 1947-1979.
- Notes relating to training of nurses at the Holy cross School of Nursing and other miscellaneous nursing material.
- There are just over six metres of material in this collection, and it is available to the public.

British Columbia

Barkerville Historic Town (Barkerville, B.C.)

Contact: W. G. Quackenbush (Curator) ph: (250) 9943435 fax: (250) 9943435 email: bill.quackenbush@gems4.gov.bc.ca P.O. Box 19 Barkerville, B.C. V0K 1B0 Materials in Possession: Archives 823 Lew 1965 Alex Rayner, Dental Nurse written by Marjorie Lewty published by Mills & Boon limited, London Photo Collection P 0218 (Acc 980.1.107) - Elderly man with two unidentified women, on in nurse's uniform. P 0424 (980.1.189) - unidentified portrait of a woman in nurse's uniform. P 0574 - Ca. 1914. A wood-sawing bee at the Royal Caribou Hospital (among those included in the photo is Miss Lovering, the nurse- in-Charge, and Bessie Locke, her only assistant). P 0576 - Ca. Winter 1913-14. Miss Mackenzie, school teacher, and Miss Lovering, Hospital nurse, at old Richfield gaols. All material is accessible to the public, it has been catalogued, and there are finding aids available.

British Columbia Archives (Victoria, B.C.)

Contact: Gary A. Mitchell ph: (250) 3875885 email: access@bcarchivies.gov.bc.ca PO Box 9419 Stn. Prov. Gov. Victoria, British Columbia V8W 9V1

Materials in Possession:

- Complete catalogue <u>http://www.bcarchives.gov.bc.ca</u>
- Government textual records including records of the Ministry of Health and its predecessors
- Private textual records including records of individual hospitals
- · Photographs
- Sound recordings
- · Film
- Newspapers and a newspaper index
- A vertical file of newspaper clippings filed by subject
- A library of printed books
- 8 linear metres of Government records, .5 linear metres and 1 reel microfilm of private textual records, 300 private and government photographs, 2 sound recordings, and 1000 feet of film available to the public (Mon. Fri. 9:30am 4:45pm, and evenings and weekends by appointment). The information in the archives have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

City of Surrey Archives (Surrey, B.C.)

Contact: Jacqueline O'Donnell ph: (604) 5026459 fax: (604) 5026457

email: jodonnel@city.surrey.bc.ca 6022 - 176th St. Surrey, B.C. V3S 4E8

Materials in Possession:

- · Records of the Victorian Order of Nurses Cloverdale
- · Records of the Victorian Order of Nurses Colebrook
- Reference material, Bandary Health Unit
- Two Oral History Interviews with Victorian Order of Nurses
- There is only one hollinger box with nursing materials, which is accessible to the public (Tues. Sat. 10:00 4:00). The holdings have been catalogued, and there are finding aids available.

City of Vancouver Archives (Vancouver, B.C.)

Contact: Sue M. Baptie ph: (604) 7368561 fax: (604) 7360626 email: archives@city.vancouver.bc.ca 1150 Chestnut St. Vancouver, B.C.V6J 3J9 Materials in Possession:

fax: (250) 3872072

- · check web site <u>http://www.city.vancouver.bc.ca/ctyclerk/archives/index.html</u>
- Difficult to determine the physical extent because holdings which relate to nursing are dispersed throughout the records and supporting collections. All collections are available for public use when archives are open. The materials have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

City of Victoria Archives (Victoria B.C.)

Contact: Carey Pallioker ph: (250) 3610375 8 Centennial Square fax: (250) 3610394 Victoria B.C. V8W 1P7

Materials in Possession:

• Little related to nursing, but they do have a web site which would help to locate items within other collections - <u>http://www.city.victoria.bc.ca/archives/index.htm</u>

Creston and District Historical and Museum Society (Creston B.C.)

Contact: C. Dollie Kaetler ph/fax: (250) 4283324

email: crvmchin@kootenay.com

Box 1123 Creston, B.C. V0B 1G0

Materials in Possession:

.

- One small manuscript Medical File
- · Clippings (newspaper), one file
- Photographs (filled Medical)
- Local Hospital Information
- MS 92-3-1 Nursing History (A Nursing survey produced in 1990.)
- Dr. G.B. Henderson Collection: Dr. J.V. Murray: Health Centre Info.
- Some books in the library
- There are five boxes of materials, plus clippings envelopes. The museum has a large artifact collection of medical supplies, and nurses uniforms. These materials are available for public use, and museum artifacts are on display in the museum. The holdings have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Cumberland Museum and Archives (Cumberland B.C.)

Contact: Barb Lemky ph: (250) 3362445 fax: (250) 3362411 email: cma_chin@island.net Box 258 2680 Dunsmuir Ave. Cumberland, B.C.

VOR 1SOMaterials in Possession:

Sterilizers, baby crib, cabinets, scales, sutures, needles, operating table, iron lung, surgical instruments, wheelchair, basins holder, anesthesia machine, operating theatre lights,

nursing station, call board, urinals, bed pans, hydrocolator, signs, photographs, BP cuff, tables, kitchen equipment, pestle & mortar.

- Hospital Board Minutes.
- Cumberland Hospital History names nurses as well as salary matrons.
- There are 12×12 feet of materials which are accessible to the public. The holdings have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Registered Nurses Association of British Columbia (Vancouver B.C.)

Contact: Joan Andrews ph: (604) 7367331 fax: (604) 7382272 email: andrews@rnabc.bc.ca 2855 Arbutus St. Vancouver, B.C. V6J 3Y8

Materials in Possession:

- Books, pamphlets, videos, journals, newsletters, annual reports, college calendars, subject bibliographies, statistic reports, B.C. oral nursing history audiotapes, and B.C. Nurses biographical files. These materials are related to the RNABC and nursing in British Columbia.
 - Most materials are available to RNABC, RPNABC, and NWTRNA members, as well as nurses preparing to write registration exams. Nursing students must have RNABC membership to use the library.

St. Paul's Hospital (Vancouver, B.C.)

Contact: R. W. Gregory Archives St. Paul's Hospital 1081 Burrard St. Vancouver, B.C. V6Z 1Y6

Materials in Possession:

Books

Pediatrics and Pediatric Nursing, 1944 Microbiology and Pathology, 1939 Surgical Nursing, 1940 Essentials of Medicine, 1940 Nurses Handbook of Obstetrics Principles and Practice of Nursing Handbook on Tuberculosis, 1928 A Dorland's Illustrated Medical Dictionary, 24th edition, 1967 <u>Aids To Surgery</u>, by Joseph Cunning, 1904 <u>The Essentials of Materia Medica, Pharmacology, and Therapeutics</u>, by R. H. Micks, 1954 Sajou's Analytic Encyclopedia of Practical Medicine, by Charles Ed'M

Sajous, 1925 Green's Manual of Pathology, by H. W. C. Vines, 1934 Diseases of Infancy and Childhood, by L. Emmet Holt, 1903 Pain, by Rudolf Schmidt, 1908 Tropical Diseases, by E. R. Stitt, 1922 Manual of Surgery, by Albert Carless, 1924 American College of Surgeons (List of Fellows) 1950 - 1952 yearbook Compendium of Pharmaceuticals and Specialties, 1969 edition (Canada) Elements of Surgical Diagnosis, by A. Pearce Gould, 1903 Manual of the Practice of Medicine, by A. A. Stevens, 1904 Mental Pathology and Normal Psychology, by Gustav Storring, 1907 Pharmacology in Nursing **Obstetrics for Nurses** Practical Methods of Study Materia Medica & Therapeutics Surgical Nursing Principles & Practice of Nursing Bacteriology & Pathology for Nurses **Professional Problems** Watch-Fires in the Mountains (The Life & Writings of Ethel Johns) St. Paul's Medical Staff, Rules & Regulations Concepts & Practices of Intensive Care for Nurse Specialists Handbook of Medical Treatment Intensive Nursing Care Patterns of Shock A Guide to Hospital Accreditation Dynamics of Mental Health Taber's Cyclopaedic Medical Dictionary Ward Management & Teaching Guidelines for Qualifications & Functions Hospital Overview & Approaches to Staffing Textbook of Medicine Care of the Patient in Surgery **Team Nursing** Abnormal Psychology & Modern Life Gray's Anatomy, 1893 Textbook - The Practice of Medicine, 1934 Diseases of Women, 1938 Surgical Pathology, 1948 Minor Surgery, 1934 Treatment in General Practice, 1946 Basic Psychiatric Concepts in Nursing, 1960 Emergency Surgery, 1931

Taber's Medical Dictionary, 1956 Surgical Nursing, 1955 Elements of Pharmacy & Materia Medica & Therapeutics, 1892 Control of Communicable Diseases in Man, 1960 A Compendium of Materia Medica & Therapeutics, 1914 The Merck Manual, 1950 Nurses Handbook of Drugs & Solutions, 1910 Aids to Diagnosis, 1962 A Pocket Medical Dictionary, 1943 Psychiatric Glossary, 1964 Vademecum, 1969 Vademecum, 1970 Elements of Medicine, 1888 Textbook of Nursing, 1894 Handbook of Anatomy, 1936 Osler's Modern Medicine, 1907 Osler's Principles & Practice of Medicine, 1897 Obstetrics for Nurses, 1925 Compendium, 1979 Psychiatric Nursing, 1957 The Psychology of Insanity, 1930 Dorland's - The Illustrated American Medical Dictionary, 1932 First Aid to the Injured, St. Johns Ambulance, 1950 Industrial First Aid, 1950 Fundamentals of First Aid, 1955 Fundamentals of First Aid, 1964 Basic Concepts of Teaching, 1961 Elements of Style, 1959 Preparation of Term Essays, 1962 A 20 Volume Set of the 20th Century Practice of Medicine, 1895 Nursing School Graduation Yearbooks Pamphlets regarding the nursing units Studies regarding work conditions for nurses Annual reports for various nursing departments within the hospital Nursing Executive Meeting Minutes **RNABC** Contracts Administrative policies Kathlyn MacLean's Personal Papers - nursing student at hospital Mr. James Bullen, RN - first male graduate, 1951

- Marie Mahoney's Personal Papers, 1946
- Therese Mahoney's Personal Papers, 1947
- Beatrice K. Wilson's Personal Papers, 1960
- Ethel Gable's Personal Papers, 1931

- · Draft Script-Students Jubilee Presentation
- A collection of school programmes for all commencement ceremonies, and other celebrations at the school
- Names and records of students, 1910 1957
- Names of students, 1958 1960
- · Grades of Students, 1960 1974
- Grades of Students 1947 1950
- Miscellaneous School Records
- Nursing Manuals
- · History of St. Paul's School of Nursing, 1958 1974
- · 1934 Doll
- Mary Louise Freeze's Personal Documents and Photo Album, 1946
- Muriel Margaret Freeze's Personal Documents, 1949
- Souvenir Napkins, class of 1938
- All materials are available to the public upon request.

University of British Columbia Archives (Vancouver, B.C.)

Contact: Chris Hives ph: (604) 8225877 fax: (604) 8229587

email: chives@interchange.ubc.ca Main Library 1956 Main Mall

Vancouver, B.C.

V6T 1Z1

Materials in Possession:

- School of Nursing fonds
- Margaret Street fonds 1905-1976 wrote on a prominent B.C. pioneer nurse, Ethel Johns.
- Eileen Flanagan fonds 1948-1984.
- Mabel Gray fonds 1898-1972.
- Ethel Johns fonds 1879-1967 first director of the School of Nursing at UBC. Was also a prominent Canadian pioneer nurse.
- There are approx. five metres of material related to nursing history, all material has been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

University of Victoria Archives (Victoria, B.C.)

Contact: Jane Turner ph: (250) 7218258 fax: (250) 7218215 email: jturner@uvic.ca University of Victoria Libraries P.O. Box 1800 Victoria, B.C. V8W 3H5

Materials in Possession:

• Examinations and Course notes for first aid

· Home nursing, 1939 - 1963

- Barbara McKenzie fonds took several courses in first aid and home nursing from the Victoria Branch of the Canadian Red Cross Corps, 1942-45. The fonds consists of correspondence, certificates, examination questions, course notes and readings, and civil defense pamphlets related to her training.
- There is 26cm of textual records, and 5 photographs accessible to the public. The holdings have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

University of Victoria School of Nursing (Victoria, B.C.)

Contact: Dr. Janet Storch School of Nursing PO Box 1700 Victoria, B.C. V8W 2Y2

Materials in Possession:

- · Organized records of the School of Nursing student and administrative information
- Printed materials on the development and implementation of the Collaborative Nursing Program of B.C.
- Information in their possession is available to the public.

Vernon Museum & Archives (Vernon, B.C.)

Contact: Linda Wills ph: (250) 5423142 fax: (250) 5585358 email: vm_chin@junction.net 3009 - 32nd Ave. Vernon, B.C. V1T 2L8

Materials in Possession:

- · 35 photos of nursing school classes, graduates, and hospital staff
- MS 7 Memoirs of a Board Secretary (acted as a male nurse as necessary)
- MS 50 Isabel Jean Gray (military nurse) 1942 1946
- · artifacts pins, uniforms, hats, cuffs, collars
- There are 35 photos and 1.5 cm of textual records that are accessible to the public. The holdings have been catalogued and there are finding aids.

Manitoba

Manitoba Association for the History of Nursing (Winnipeg, Manitoba)

Contact: Ina Bramadat email: inabram@mb.sympatico.ca

Materials in Possession:

· Materials regarding various aspects of nursing in Manitoba - records, photographs,

documentation, and journals.

- These documents are not properly organized, but are available for public use.
- Have contact names and numbers of the hospitals in Winnipeg, which have extensive archival holdings.

Contact Ina Bramadat for further information.

Provincial Archives of Manitoba (Winnipeg, Manitoba)

Contact: The Archivist ph: (204) 9454233 fax: (204) 9482008 email: govrecs@culture.mbnet.mb.ca

200 Vaughan Street

Winnipeg, Manitoba

R3C-1T5

Materials in Possession:

- There is an extensive collection of nursing history materials at the Provincial Archives.
- Provincial Health records
- Public Health records
- Materials of The Canadian Red Cross
- Other documentation and photographs
- These materials are catalogued and there are finding aids.

University of Manitoba Archives & Special Collections (Winnipeg, Manitoba)

Contact: Michael L. Moosberger ph: (204) 4748243 fax: (204) 4747577 email: Michael.Moosberger@umanitoba.ca

Room 331, Elizabeth Dafoe Library

- 25 Chancellor's Circle
- Winnipeg, Manitoba
- R3T 2N2

Materials in Possession:

- Records of the Faculty of Nursing
- Helen Glass Fonds
- Records of the President's Office, Board of Governors, Senate related to curriculum, program development
- There is approx. 25 metres of textual material, and approx. 100 photos and slides accessible to the public Mon. Fri. 8:30-4:30. All but the most recent materials have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

New Brunswick

Nurses Association of New Brunswick/Nursing History Centre

(Fredericton, New Brunswick)

Contact: Arlee Hoyt McGee ph: (506) 4592862

email: amcgee@nanb.nb.ca

165 Regent St.

Fredericton, New Brunswick

E3B 7B4

Materials in Possession:

- Their collection is too comprehensive to list
- They do have uniforms, pins, artifacts, pictures, films, records, tapes, etc.
- Their collections range from the First Nations people to present day
- The information is well documented in the Guide to Health Care History Materials in New Brunswick (1998), Acadians Press, UNB, Fredericton.
- Most of the information available to the public is written in both official languages, French and English.
- They possess 1450 square feet of display and a cabinet which contains 55+ boxes of information. This material is accessible to the public, and has partly been catalogued. The development of finding aids is also in progress.

Provincial Archives of New Brunswick (Fredericton, New Brunswick)

Contact: Marion Beyea

ph: (506) 4444021 fax: (506) 4533288

P.O. Box 6000 Fredericton, New Brunswick E3B 5H1

Materials in Possession:

- Personal documents of nurses working in the area
- Personal documents of area inhabitants
- St. Joseph's Sanitarium records
- Victoria Hospital Collection
- Various Drug Store's records
- New Brunswick Optometrical Society papers
- New Brunswick Pharmaceutical Society records
- New Brunswick Association of Registered Nurses Assistants records
- Canadian Red Cross Society, New Brunswick Division records
- New Brunswick Association of Registered Nurses records
- UNB Student Mental Health brief
- Moncton Hospital records
- Anti-VD posters 1930-1940
- Government records
- V.O.N. records
- Saint John General Hospital records
- Moncton Municipal records
- Records of the City of Fredericton
- Various Town records
- Nursing Home Services Branch records

fax: (506) 4588731

- Saint John Tuberculosis Hospital records
- VD Control Branch records
- · Fredericton Board of Health records
- County Board of Health records
- Provincial Vaccine Institute records
- Moncton Board of Health records
- · Polio Clinic records
- Moncton Hospital records
- Various cartographic and audio/visual records 1902-1990
- Oral histories 1970-present
- All materials at the archives are accessible to the public, they are catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Sisters of Charity Archives (Saint John, New Brunswick)

Contact: Sister Marion Murray ph: (506) 6483940

101 Burpee Avenuefax: (506) 848102-fax is for the community admin., notSaint John, New Brunswickspecifically for the archivesE2K 3V9

Materials in Possession:

- Short histories of the hospitals
- Photos of construction and renovations of the hospitals
- Photos of graduating nurses
- Booklets made by the sisters for celebrating landmarks
- Register of nurses
- Papers written by sisters
- There is a small amount of materials at these archives that can be accessed by appointment only. The materials have not been catalogued, and there are no finding aids.

Newfoundland

Association of Registered Nurses of Newfoundland (St. John's, NFLD.)

Pauline M. Laracy Library and Archives

Contact: Patricia Rahal ph: (709) 7536040 fax: (709) 7534940

email: arnn@nf.sympatico.ca

ARNN House

55 Military Road

PO Box 6116

St. John's, NFLD A1C 5X8

- · Association of Registered Nurses of Newfoundland fonds, 1931 1991
- · Canadian Nurses Association fonds, 1947 1990
- Newfoundland Graduate Nurses' Association fonds, 1915 1958
- Pauline M. Laracy Library and Archives collection, 1934 1991 includes thousands of photographs.
- There is approx. 20 metres of materials that are available to members of the association, ARNN staff, and the public. The library and archives are open 2:00pm - 5:00pm, Mon. -Fri. Researchers must make an appointment, ahead of time, with the archivist. The collections are catalogued.

Lillian Stevenson Nursing Archives/Museum (St. John's, Newfoundland)

Contact: Janet Story ph: (709) 7375911

L.A. Miller Centre Forest Rd. St. John's NFLD. A1A 1E5

Materials in Possession:

- Apparently there were too many collections to list
- There are 10 12 metres, or 40 50 boxes of information that is available to the public. It has all been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Memorial University of Newfoundland (St. John's, Newfoundland) Maritime History Archive

Contact: Heather Wareham ph: (709) 7378203 fax: (709) 7373123

email: mha@morgan.ucs.mun.ca

Memorial University

St. John's, Newfoundland A1C 5S7

Materials in Possession:

published papers written by Memorial University Students

- "The Development of Public Health Nursing Service in Newfoundland Prior to 1934"by Hope Toumishey

- "Causes behind the Problems of Transcultural Nursing in northern

Labrador"by Heather Baum

- "Nursing Experiences in Labrador" by Julie Brushett

- "An Analysis of the Conditions of Twenty Five Years of Outpost Nursing in Labrador" by Sandra Picco

- "Pediatric Nursing: History of Health Care and Services to the Children of Labrador by Lynn Ann Kelland

- "Early Health Care and Nursing in Labrador" by Bernadine O'Leary

- "Development of Nursing and Medical Practices in Newfoundland" by Sheila Moores

These papers have been catalogued and are accessible to the public. There are also finding aids available at the archives.

Northwest Territories

North West Territories Registered Nurses Association (Yellowknife, NWT)

Contact: Barb Bromley ph: (867) 8732745

email: barbbrom@internorth.com

Box 2757 Yellowknife, NWT

X1A 2R1

Materials in Possession:

- Written history of the Grey Nuns, the first nurses in the North West Territories.
- pamphlets from Inuktituk, produced by medical services.
- nursing pins, a cape, a nursing uniform, and a cap donated by nurses who worked in the North.
- early photographs, and documentation of the beginning of the NWTRNA.
- Most materials are currently being stored in cardboard boxes at the home of the archivist. Nothing has been properly catalogued, or anything like that, but researchers are more than welcome to go see if what they have is of any use to them.

Prince of Wales Northern Heritage Centre (Yellowknife, NWT)

Contact: Joanne Bird ph: (867) 8737668 fax: (867) 8730205 email: joanne_bird@ece.learnnet.nt.ca Education, Culture and Employment

Government of the Northwest Territories

Box 1320

Yellowknife, NWT

X1A 2L9

Materials in Possession:

- Hospital and medical equipment from missions, NWT hospitals, and nursing stations. The collection consists primarily of artifacts.
- The materials in the galleries are accessible to the public, and access to the storeroom is by appointment only. The holdings have been catalogued, but there are no finding aids.
- For more information, look up: <u>http://www.chin.gc.ca</u>

Nova Scotia

Cumberland County Museum (Amherst, Nova Scotia)

Contact: B. Thompson ph: (902) 6672561 fax: (902) 6670996 email: ccmuseum@istar.ca 150 Church Street Amherst, Nova Scotia B4H 3C4 Materials in Possession:

- Various materials on the area hospitals which had ongoing nursing training.
- Mally Stevens Collection she had an extensive nursing career, and was an active member of V.O.N.
- The materials are accessible to the public, they have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Queen Elizabeth II Health Sciences Centre Archives (Halifax, Nova Scotia)

Contact: Owen McInerney ph: (902) 4737146

5909 Ibilee Rd.

Halifax, Nova Scotia

B3H 2E2

Materials in Possession:

- · Contents consist of the Halifax Infirmary Nursing Alumni Association Fonds
- right now materials are not open to the public, the material is not catalogued, and there are no finding aids.

St. Francis Xavier University, (Antigonish, Nova Scotia)

Contact: Librarian

Materials in Possession:

• Materials regarding the nursing programme at St. Francis Xavier University, as well as nursing in Nova Scotia. These materials are only available to student and faculty members. All documents are catalogued by the catalogue department in the library.

Victoria General Hospital Alumni Archives/Museum (Halifax, Nova Scotia)

Contact: Mrs. Helen T. Abbass ph: (902) 4232972

2248 Connaught Avenue Halifax, Nova Scotia B3L 2Z3

- · Records, diaries, artifacts, memorabilia, photos, diplomas, year books, personal albums
- Military uniforms from both world wars
- Articles in nursing care in the hospital
- It is not determined as to the physical extent of the holdings, but they are accessible to the public. The materials are being catalogued on an ongoing basis.

<u>Ontario</u>

Archives of Ontario (Toronto, Ontario)

Contact: Bill Hughey ph: (416) 3271540 fax: (416) 3271999

email: Bill-hughey@archives.gov.on.ca

77 Brenville St.

Unit 300

Toronto, Ontario

M5S 1B3

- Ontario Ministry of Education Records schools for nurses and nursing assistants
- Ontario Ministry of Health Records Hospital records
- Provincial Board of Health Records
- · Inspector of Asylums, Prisons and Public Charities Records
- Ontario Ministry of Colleges and Universities Records
- Ontario Association of Registered Nursing Assistants Papers
- · Cornwall General Hospital Papers
- St. Thomas-Elgin General Hospital Papers
- McLean Family Papers
- · Davis-Leroux Collection
- Oral histories of Canadian doctors and nurses Miss Jean Taylor relays stories of the time she spent in England, setting up hospitals and nursing stations for the troops. She also worked in China when China first allowed the outside world in.
- Photographs of various Ontario hospital nurses Queen Street Mental Health Centre, London Psychiatric hospital, Penetanguishene Mental Health Centre, Public Health Nursing Branch
- Ontario Ministry of Community and Social Services Records
- Sadie Arvuckle papers
- · Camp Borden Album
- · Kitchener-Waterloo Hospital Collection
- West Park Hospital Collection
- · Isabel Black Collection
- Queen Elizabeth Hospital Collection
- Annie Eliza Saunders Collection
- The amount of material the Ontario Archives possess is extremely extensive. All materials are catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Arnprior & District Archives (Arnprior, Ontario)

Contact: Laurie Dougherty ph: (613) 6230112

21B Madawaska Street Arnprior, Ontario

K7S 1R6

Materials in Possession:

- 93-0005 Arnprior & District Museum Collection photograph album and 150 postcards
 belonging to a nurse, Annie Kiddell, 1914 1918.
- 97-0083 Town of Amprior Collection V.O.N.
 - minute books 2 vol. 1924 1934 & 1935 1942
- account books 2 vol. 1941 1946 & 1947 1958
- - treasurer's reports 1946 1949.
- Other miscellaneous photographs
- 93-0010 Margaret Stewart Collection 1904 05, Queen's University Convocation Program for Faculty of Medicine, Faculty of Law & School of Nursing. There is 1 box (approx. 1' x 1') of materials that are accessible to the public.
- The holdings have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Bayfield Archives (Bayfield, Ontario)

Contact: Rae McFarlane ph: (519) 5655200 P.O. Box 161

Bayfield, Ontario

N0M 1G0

Materials in Possession:

The materials in their possession is quite limited, though there are some newspaper articles, with regards to nursing in the area, which researchers may find interesting.

Burlington Historical Society (Burlington, Ontario)

Contact: Dr. J D Galloway ph: (905) 6378000 P.O. Box 40565 Upper Brant Postal Outlet Burlington, Ontario L7P-4W1 Materials in Possession:

Materials in Possession:

- Files on the Joseph Brant Memorial Hospital
- · Burlington branch of the Victorian Order of Nurses
- · Files on the St. Elizabeth Home Nurses
- · Information regarding Military Nurses of Canada
- Resources at the historical society are limited, but are accessible upon inquiry.

College of Nurses of Ontario (Toronto, Ontario)

Contact: Cathy Stanford ph: (416) 9280900 fax: (416) 9286507 email: cstanford@cnomail.org 101 Davenport Road Toronto, Ontario M5R 3P1

Materials in Possession:

- Advisory Council on Nursing Education (1923 1962)
- · CNO Provisional Council (1962 1963)
- · CNO Council, Executive Committee, Statutory Committees (1963)
- Nursing Legislation in Ontario, letters, surveys and reports re: schools of nursing in Ontario (1923 -)
- Various nursing related photographs (late 1800's)
- Artifacts nursing pins, caps, and diplomas from various dates.
- There is approx. 10 cubic feet of archival materials at the college, which is accessible to the public by appointment only.

County of Grey-Owen Sound Museum (Owen Sound, Ontario)

Contact: Joan L. Hyslop ph: (519) 3763690

email: museum@greycounty.on.ca

975 - 6th St. E.

Owen Sound, Ontario

N4K 1G9 Materials in Possession:

- 994.59.1 192 Grey Bruce Regional Health Centre (donor) scrapbook, booklets, photos, nursing pin, graduation exercises programs from school of nursing (about 47 of these items are nursing-related. The others are hospital-related).
- 995.4.1 Photo of Miss Winnifred Cooke RN, Director of the School of Nursing Gem hospital, Owen Sound 1949-1963.
- 990.53.8 19th century view of Nurse (in uniform) from St. Vincent Twp. WW I Nursing sister uniforms and veils, worn by Katherine Wilson (Mrs. Simmie) who trained in Owen Sound
- 995.10.1 1929 Hamilton General Hospital Nursing pin that belonged to an Owen Sound woman.
- 979.37 Large batch of items collected by the General and Marine Hospital Nursing Alumnae, Owen Sound. Examples of nursing pins from that school; ledgers/binders from nursing school; booklets re. nursing school and hospital reports; graduation photographs (early 1900's - 1970's)
- 977.208.1 Book, by Rahmo M Beamish <u>Fifty Years a Canadian Nurse: Devotion</u>, <u>Opportunities, and Duty</u> 1st Edition, 1970. 344pp.
- There are several file cabinets, and file drawers, which contain this information. As well, there are photos in frames, unframed photos, and uniforms kept in a clothing cupboard. All material is accessible to the public, but is accessed by the archivist, and all materials have been catalogued.

Guelph Museums (Guelph, Ontario)

Contact: Bev Dietrich ph: (519) 8361221 ext. 224 fax: (519) 8365280 email: gcmchin@istar.ca 6 Dublin St. S. Guelph, Ontario N1H 4L5

Materials in Possession:

- 984.19.1 Guelph General Hospital Historical Sketch 1898, By-laws and regulations for nurses and lists of graduates 1888 - 1898
- 5 photographs
- 985.25.1 Medical notebook
- · 3 complete nurse uniforms W.W.I and W.W.II
- There is 3 linear feet of material that is accessible to the public. Materials have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Homewood Health Centre Inc. (Guelph, Ontario)

Contact: Joyce Pharoah/Maxine Corea	ph: (519) 8241010 ext. 117
150 Delhi St.	fax: (519) 8241827
Guelph, Ontario	
N1E 6K9	
Materials in Possession	

Materials in Possession:

- Since 1911 minutes, photographs, physio, medical records, annual reports, staff development, and union negotiations from the facility.
- There are 12 4'x14' small grey artifact boxes, which are only available to those individuals who seek permission from the CEO. All materials have been catalogued, and there are finding aids in place.

Lennox & Addington County Museum and Archives (Napanee, Ontario)

Contact: Jennifer Bunting ph: (613) 3543027 97 Thomas St. E. fax: (613) 3543112 Postal Bag 1000 Napanee, Ontario K7R 3S9

Materials in Possession:

- The Walter Wagar Collection a collection of family papers etc. was presented to the museum by Dr. Alan Walters in memory of his parents, Charles A. Walters (1879-1963) and Stella Wagar Walters (1884-1978). Dr. Walters' sister, Margaret, became a nurse. She married another medical doctor, Frank L. Shipp in England in 1941, and later moved with him to California.
- It is unknown as to what the physical extent of the collection is, whether or not the holdings are catalogued, and if there are finding aids.

Margaret Allemang Centre for the History of Nursing (Toronto, Ontario)

Contact: Margaret Allemang ph: (416) 7672714

320 Willard Avenue Toronto, Ontario

M6S-3R2

Materials in Possession:

- Tape-recorded interviews and transcripts of two oral history programmes one with nursing sisters of WWI, and the other with nursing sisters of WWII.
- War nurses documents
- artifacts and memorabilia
- Materials can be accessed, but an appointment must be made first.

McMaster University, Division of Archives and Research (Hamilton, Ontario)

Contact: Dr. Kathy Garay ph: (905) 5259140 ext. 22790 fax: (905) 5460625

email: garay@mcmaster.ca

1280 Main St. W.

Hamilton, Ontario

L8S 4L6

Materials in Possession:

- McMaster University Archives contains material relating to the development of the Nursing programme at McMaster
- World War I this archive contains an autograph book compiled by a nursing sister
- World War II this archive contains a scrap book compiled by a nursing sister
- Most of the material available relates to the role of the nurse in the two World Wars.
- There is approx. 1 metre of material that are available to the public. Holdings have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

McMaster University, Health Sciences Library (Hamilton, Ontario)

Contact: Anne McKeage ph: (905) 5259140 ext. 22928 fax: (905) 5283733

email: mckeage@fhs.mcmaster.ca

1200 Main St. West

Hamilton, Ontario

L8N3Z5

Materials in Possession:

- Information regarding the school of nursing. There are board minutes, course material, photographs, and films; all of these go back to 1941 when the school of nursing was opened.
- There are 70 document boxes of material that is accessible to the public Monday Friday, 8:30 4:30. An appointment is appreciated.

National Archives of Canada - Government Archives & Records Disposition Division (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Catherine Bailey (Health & Social Welfare Archivist) ph: (613) 9959522 344 Wellington St. fax: (613) 9968982 Ottawa, Ontario

K1A 0N3

Materials in Possession:

- The National Archives have an extensive collection of materials related to nursing. Some of the primary areas that these documents are found are in:
 - Privy Council Office Records (RG 2)
 - Post Office Records (RG3)
 - Secretary of State Records (RG6)
 - Governor General's Office Records (RG 7)

- Militia and Defense (RG 9) - contains references to the South African War, and the Canadian Army Medical Corps nursing sisters.

- Indian Affairs (RG 10) - records relate to the establishment/construction of nursing stations, the training of nurses (including natives), and nursing services in various

institutions serving the Native population.

- Department of Justice Records (RG 13)
- Agriculture Records (RG 17)
- Royal Canadian Mounted Police Records (RG 18)
- Department of Finance Records (RG 19)

- Department of National Defense (RG 24) - contains records relating to the Canadian Army Medical Corps from the South African War to contemporary conflicts, including the First and Second World Wars. This includes records the organization and staffing of nursing units, and military campaigns for which nursing sisters were mobilized.

- Department of External Affairs and International Trade (RG 25)
- Citizenship and Immigration (RG 26)
- Labour (RG 27)
- Munitions and Supply (RG 28)

- National Health and Welfare (RG 29) - contains a wide variety of records relating to nursing such as: general subject files on nursing in Canada, the interaction between the Department and various nursing committees, organizations and associations (such as the Canadian Nurses Association, the Victorian Order of Nurses; training of nurses; public health nursing; nursing in the Canadian North, and supporting the Native population. This RG also holds records of the Nursing Consultant Services 1947 - 1966 (Volumes 761-763), Office of the Principal Nursing Officer 1965 - 1994 (Volumes 3469-3475 and Accession 95-96/226), and Office of the Chief Nursing Consultant, 1963-1992 (Volumes 3612-3614).

- Canadian National Railways (RG 30)

- Royal Commissions (RG 33) - This RG includes commissions which may have records relating to nursing in Canada, or records produced by nurses (i.e., briefs and reports): Royal Commission on Health Services ("Hall Commission"), Royal Commission on the Status of Women in Canada, Royal Commission on the

Non-Medical Use of Drugs ("LeDain Commission").

- Veteran's Affairs (RG 38)

- Unemployment Insurance Commission (RG 50)
- Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA) (RG 74)

- Immigration Programme (RG 76) - Contains subject files relating to the immigration of nurses from outside Canada.

- Northern Affairs Programme (RG 85)
- Environment Canada (RG 108)
- Public Service Staff Relations Board (RG 111)
- Manpower and Immigration (RG 118)
- Medical Research Council of Canada (RG 128)

- Overseas Military Forces of Canada (RG 150) - contains personnel records from First World War nursing sisters.

- Canadian Institute for International Peace and Security (RG 154).

The archives also possess many fonds or collections relating to nursing in Canada.

- MG 28 I 121 - Canadian Association of Hospital Auxiliaries

- MG 28 I 248 - Canadian Nurses Association/L'Association des Infirmieres Canadienne

- MG 28 I 396 - Canadian Nurses Foundation/Fondation des Infirmieres et Infirmier du Canada

- MG 28 H 18 Fairhome Papers
- MG 28 I 279 Lady Stanley Institute Nurses Alumnae Association
- MG 30 E 45 Macdonald, Margaret Clotilde, 1879 1948
- MG 30 E 60 Peterkin, Irene
- MG 28 I 171 Victorian Order of Nurses for Canada
- MG 30 C 182 Farmer, Florence, 1879 1974
- MG 30 B 105 Young, Ruth, b. 1884
- MG 13 W.O 100 Great Britain War Office. W.O. 100, Campaign Medals

The physical extent of these materials can not be determined, but there is public access to these materials. To obtain access to the materials look at the NAC website,

<u>http://www.archives.ca</u>, under "Services to the public" and "researcher services", to find out user policies. The holdings at the archives have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Ottawa Civic Hospital (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Gwen Hefferman ph: (613) 7614097

1053 Carling Avenue

Ottawa, Ontario

K1Y-4E9

- · Artifacts, records, photos, and annual reports.
- · School of nursing yearbooks, course curriculum, and photos.
- These materials are available only by appointment, and there are no finding aids.

Peterborough County - City Health Unit (Peterborough, Ontario)

Contact: Ruth Bush ph: (705) 7431000 fax: (705) 7432897 email: rgbush@pcchu.peterborough.on.ca 10 Hospital Drive Peterborough, Ontario K9J 8M1

Materials in Possession:

- Photos, diaries, newspaper clippings, memorabilia.
- The physical extent can not be assessed at this time, but all material is open to the public. New procedures on public research is being reviewed by the Board of Health. The material they have is being catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Peterborough Regional Health Centre (Peterborough, Ontario)

Contact: Lorna Whittaker ph: (705) 7432121 ext. 3720

One Hospital Drive

Peterborough, Ontario

K9J 7C6

Materials in Possession:

- Nursing Records 1885 present
- School of Nursing 1891-1973 graduation programs newspaper clippings
- Nursing textbooks
- Student Nurses notebooks
- Photos of all graduation classes
- · History of School of Nursing written in 1991 to mark 100th anniversary
- Alumnae records alumnae is still active
- Artifacts graduation pins, thermometer and hypodermic sets, nurses uniforms, caps capes, and blazers.
- There is about 12 metres of materials available to the public. There are some finding aids, and the materials are partially catalogued.
- The archives are open Mondays 1:30-4:00, and Wednesdays 9:30-11:30.

Queen's University School of Nursing (Kingston, Ontario)

Contact: Marianne Lamb ph: (613) 5332669

- email: ML24@post.queensu.ca
- 90 Barrie Street
- Kingston, Ontario

K7L-3N6

- Records of the Canadian Association of the University School of Nursing
- Queen's School of Nursing records
- · Kingston General Hospital records

St. Catherine's Public Library, Special Collections (St. Catherine's, Ontario) Contact: Lydia Church ph: (905) 6886103 ext. 216 fax: (905) 6882811 email: nonficti@stcatherines.library.on.ca 54 Church St. St. Catherine's, Ontario L2R 7K2

Materials in Possession:

Items regarding Mack School of Nursing

- scrapbooks with newspaper clippings
- history Mack Training School for Nurses
- Mack Training School for Nurses (1950 curriculum)
- Mack Training School sixtieth anniversary (1934)
- Mack Training School for Nurses seventy-fifth anniversary (1949)
- Victorian Order of Nurses for Canada 50th anniversary 1897-1947 (1947)
- There is less than one linear foot of materials at the library that is accessible to the public. The holdings have been catalogued, but there are no finding aids.

Sault Ste. Marie Public Library (Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario)

Contact: Linda Burtch ph: (705) 7595236 50 East Street fax: (705) 7598752 Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario P6A 3C3

Materials in Possession:

- General Hospital & St. Mary's School Nursing includes photographs, films, video tapes, scrapbooks, and ephemera.
- There is 3 metres of materials available to the public. These materials have been catalogued and there finding aids.

Sisters of Providence of St. Vincent de Paul Archives (Kingston, Ontario)

Contact: Sr. Gayle Desarmia ph: (613) 5444525 fax: (613) 5319805 email: archives@providence.ca P.O. Box 427 Kingston, Ontario K7L 4W4

Materials in Possession:

- Graduation pictures class photos.
- A couple of nursing school pins.
- There is only one small box of materials related to the history of nursing, and it is available to the public by appointment only. The materials have been catalogued and there are finding aids.

Stratford/Perth Archives (Stratford, Ontario)

Contact: Lutzen Riedstra 24 St. Andrew Street Stratford, Ontario N5A 1A3 ph: (519) 2730399 fax: (519) 2716265

Materials in Possession:

- · Various personal Fonds (photos, etc.)
- Photocopies of all Stratford hospital Board minutes and Annual reports
- · Yearbooks and miscellaneous items from the Stratford Nursing College
- It is uncertain the physical extent of the material, but it is all accessible to the public Mon.
 Sat. 9:00-5:00 year round. The materials are partially catalogued and there are finding aids for some of the relevant fonds.

Toronto East General Hospital Museum and Archives (Toronto, Ontario)

Contact: Jill Robertson ph: (416) 4696622

825 Coxwell Avenue

Toronto, Ontario

M4C 3E7

Materials in Possession:

- Year Books from the school of nursing
- Program Curriculums
- Transcripts of graduates of school of nursing
- Sunrise to Sunset, a history of the school of nursing by J. W. Spalding, director of the school.
- These materials are not yet accessible to the public, they are not catalogued, and there are no finding aids. It is hoped this will be worked on in the near future.

University of Ottawa (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Reference Archivist ph: (613) 5625750 fax: (613) 5625198 email: archives@uottawa.ca 100 Marie Curie St. , (012) P.O. Box 450, Stn. A Ottawa, Ontario K1N 6N5 Materials in Possession:

• School of Nursing Fonds - 1929 - 1994. Textual records, graphic records, sound records, artifact records, microform records.

- U of O was the first bilingual school of nursing school in Canada. This history is relayed in the office files which document the administrative, teaching, and research functions of the school. Includes minutes (1938 1991), annual reports (1937 1971), subject files, and newspaper clippings.
- Faculty of Health Sciences Fonds
 - The Gazette, February 19, 1993. The new Master's in Nursing
 - The Gazette, May 2, 1997. U of O nursing initiative to improve child health care in

China.

- Office of the Registrar.

There are over 20 metres of textual records available for public use. The materials have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

University of Toronto Archives and Records (Toronto, Ontario)

Contact: Garron Wells ph: (416) 9787656 fax: (416) 9781667 email: wells@library.utoronto.ca 120 St. George St. Toronto, Ontario M5S 1A5

Materials in Possession:

- There are 39 separate findings in the U of T archives, on nursing. These collections are documented on the attachment on the survey.
- There are approx. 10+ metres of material in the archives which can be accessed by the public.
- More information on the U of T materials can be found on their web site http://www.library.utoronto.ca/archives

University of Western Ontario (London, Ontario)

Contact: Carroll L. Iwasiw ph: (519) 6792111 ext. 6590 fax: (519) 6613928

email: ciwasiw@julian.uwo.ca University of Western Ontario Office of the Director; School of Nursing London, Ontario N6A 5C1

Materials in Possession:

The University of Western Ontario Library has a collection of books related to the history of nursing. These books are not specific to the University of Western Ontario, but are related to Canadian nursing as a whole. These books are accessible to University of Western Ontario library card holders, as well, they are available through inter-library loan.

Women's College Hospital Campus/ Sunnybrook & Women's College Health Sciences Centre (Toronto, Ontario)

Contact: Margaret Robins ph: (416) 3236400 ext. 2964 76 Grenville St. fax: (416) 8134712 Toronto, Ontario M5S 1B2 Materials in Possession:

- School of Nursing teaching files, studies and surveys, programmes and invitations, certificates, year books and newsletters, examinations, calendars, student uniforms, photographs, memorabilia (year pins, graduation pins, etc.)
- Nursing Alumnae Association minutes and brochures, correspondence, publications, newsletters, annual reports, history.
- There are 25 hollinger boxes of nursing material, which is accessible to the public. The holdings have been catalogued, and there are a limited amount of finding aids.

Women's Christian Association (London, Ontario)

Contact: Board Chair ph: (519) 6854036 fax: (519) 6854071

801 Commissioners Road East

London, Ontario

N6C 5J1

Materials in Possession:

- The contents of the collection deal with the Nursing Sisters (now renamed Nursing Officers)
- There is 4.5 cubic metres of information that is temporarily not available to the public. They are hoping to make these materials accessible soon, though.
- The information has been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

Woodstock Public Library (Woodstock, Ontario)

Contact: Susan Start ph: (519) 5394801 fax: (519) 5395246 email: sstart@city.woodstock.on.ca 445 Hunter St. Woodstock, Ontario N4S 4G7

Materials in Possession:

- Small amount in histories of local hospital, newspaper clippings
- Local newspapers are on microfilm, and are indexed 1840's-1926
- These materials are available to the public, but the staff retrieves the materials for the researcher. The materials have been catalogued, but there are not finding aids.

Prince Edward Island

Association of Nurses of Prince Edward Island (Charlottetown, PEI)

Contact: Becky Gosbee ph: (902) 3683764 fax: (902) 6281430 email: anpei@pei.sympatico.ca 17 Pownal Street Charlottetown, PEI C1A 3V7

- Documents directly regarding the association reports, minutes, records, publications, and correspondence.
- Artifacts, films, memorabilia, and photographs.
- Information regarding the various nursing groups in PEI, ie. alumnae associations, and schools of nursing in PEI.
- These materials are accessible upon request.

Quebec

Archives des Ursulines (Trois-Rivieres, Quebec)

Contact: Germaine Blais ph: (819) 3756039

784, des Ursulines fax: (819) 6910490

Trois-Rivieres, Quebec

G9A 5B5

Materials in Possession:

- There are many articles dating between 1697 1886, in the possession of the Ursuline Sisters of Trois-Rivieres. These include:
 - La vie medicale au vieux-Trois-Rivieres
 - Technique du nursing des gardes-malades auxiliaires
 - Le soin des malades: principes et techniques
 - L'Ecole d'infirmieres de l'Hopital Notre-Dame
 - <u>L'infirmiere en chirurgie</u>
 - <u>Histoire de la profession infirmiere au Quebec</u>
 - Manuel des hospitalieres et des garde-malades
 - Manuel des infirmieres I: anatomie, physiologie, Hygiene
 - Le livre des garde-malades a l'usage des familles et principalements des

communautes religieuses et des soeurs hospitalieres

- Manuel de la garde-malades de l'Hotel-Dieu: notion elementaires de

therapeutique

- Cours de pharmacologie a l'usage des infirmieres

- Traite theorique et pratique de l'art du dentiste

- Physiologie et hygiene des ecoles, des colleges et des familles

- <u>Differential diagnosis: a manual of the compariative semeiology of the more</u> <u>important diseases</u>

- La pratique de l'art des accouchements
- <u>Une page memorable de la medecine a Quebec</u>
- Traite pratique des maladies des yeux, des oreilles, du nez et deu pharynx
- Obstetrique: notes preparees en collab.

- Traite pratique de matiere medicale de therapeutique et de toxicologie

- Obstetrique: notes preparees en collab.

- Traite pratique de matiere medicale de therapeutique et de toxicologie

- <u>Medecine domestique ou Traite complet des moyens de conserver en sante,</u> <u>et de gerir les maladies par le regime et les remedes simples</u>.

- <u>Le medecin de la famille, encyclopedie de medecine et d'hygiene publique et prive</u>

- Traite elementaire de matiere medicale et guide pratique des Soeurs de Charite de l'Asile de la Providence

- La pharmacopee raisonnee de Schroder commeentee

- Elements de microbiologie et notions pratiques de laboratoire

These materials are available at the Archives des Ursulines in Trois-Rivieres Monday to Friday, 9:00 - 11:30 and 1:00 - 4:00, by appointment.

- materials are in French

Archives nationales du Quebec, centre d'archives de l'Abitibi-Temiscamingue et du Nord-du-Quebec (Rouyn-Noranda, Quebec)

Contact: Louise-Helene Audet ph: (819) 7624484

27, rue du Terminus Ouest fax: (819) 7646480

Rouyn-Noranda, Quebec

J9X-2P3

Materials in Possession:

- The papers of various citizens of the area from throughout the 20th century
- photographs of nurses and doctors in the area
- manuscripts of different individuals
- This information is available to the public, but is in French

Archives nationales du Quebec, centre d'archives de l'Estrie (Sherbrooke, Quebec)

Contact: Helene Martin ph: (819) 8203010 Technicienne en documentation fax: (819) 8203930 Archives nationales du Quebec Centre de l'Estrie 740 rue Galt ouest, bureau RC 11 Sherbrooke, Quebec J1H 1Z3

Materials in Possession:

look up the web site address: <u>http://www.anq.gouv.qc.ca</u>

- in French

McGill University Archives (Montreal, Quebec)

Contact: Johanne M. Pelletier ph: (514) 3983772 Director University Archives McGill University fax: (514) 3988456 3459 McTavish St. Montreal, Quebec H3A 1X1 Materials in Possession: The McGill University School of Nursing Alumnae Archives - hold all past information regarding the nursing program, and the students involved in this program.

Universite de Montreal, Division des archives (Montreal, Quebec)

Contact: Denis Plante ph: (514) 3432239 fax: (514) 3432239

- email: Denis.Plante@umontreal.ca
- C.P. 6128, succursale Centre-ville
- Montreal, Quebec H3C 3J7

Materials in Possession:

- The University has written documents, photos, and oral histories of nurses at the nursing school.
- Faculty of Nursing Fonds, 1925 1990.
- Faculty of Medicine Fonds, 1877 present.
- The papers of Alice Girard, the first Dean of the School of Nursing, 1962 1973.
- The papers of Jeanne Forest, assistant Dean, and secretary, of the School of Nursing, 1969 1973.
- The papers of Denise Lefebvre, Director of another school of nursing connected to the University of Montreal. No dates are given for her.
- All of these materials are accessible to the public, but an appointment must be made with the archivist. These documents are all in French.

Saskatchewan

City of Regina Archives (Regina, Saskatchewan)

Contact: Ivan J. Saunders ph: (306) 7873399 fax: (306) 7873384

email: cor.archives@sk.sympatico.ca

3303 Hillsdale St.

Regina, Saskatchewan

S4S 6W9

Materials in Possession:

- Grey Nun's School of Nursing photos
- Grey Nun's Hospital uniforms for nurses, 1920Æs, 1940-1960
- Pasqua Hospital photos
- · Grey Nun's Nursing Sisters
- There are more photos than textual material at the Regina archives. All materials are accessible to the public, though, and they have been catalogued, and finding aids are available.

Saskatchewan Archives Board (Regina, Saskatchewan)

Contact: Ivan J. Saunders

- University of Regina
- Regina, Saskatchewan
- S4S 0A2
- Materials in Possession:
- · Information regarding the Grey Nun's Hospital in Regina
- Letters from two nursing friends
- · V.O.N. in Regina
- · Various books regarding nursing pioneers in Canada
- Marguerite E. Robinson's Personal Papers
- · Saskatchewan Registered Nurses' Association Papers
- Regina General Hospital School of Nursing Papers
- · Canadian Nurses Association Papers
- University of Saskatchewan School of Nursing
- Lists of members of Saskatchewan's psychiatric nurses association, 1958 1962
- Photographs related to nursing in Saskatchewan
- · Saskatchewan Red Cross Nurses Papers
- · Records of the Department of Public Health in the Archives of Saskatchewan
- Most of these materials are catalogued

University of Saskatchewan Archives (Saskatoon, Saskatchewan)

Contact: Cheryl Avery ph: (306) 9666028 fax: (306) 9666040

email: avery@sklib.usask.ca

301 Main Library

- 3 Campus Drive
- University of Saskatchewan
- Saskatoon, Saskatchewan

S7N 5A4

Materials in Possession:

- College of Nursing Fonds 1952-1990 (inclusive) see the attached for more information.
- Photographs related to the college of nursing
- Student year books from the college of nursing
- Information in the University President's office and other administrative collections.
- There is just over 5 metres of information that is available in the archives for public use. The holdings have been catalogued, and there are finding aids.

University of Saskatchewan School of Nursing (Saskatoon, Saskatchewan)

Contact: Yvonne Brown College of Nursing University of Sask. Health Sciences Bldg. 107 Wiggins Road Saskatoon, Saskatchewan

S7N 5E5

Materials in Possession:

- Documents regarding the nursing programme at the University of Saskatchewan.
- Old nursing text books used at the nursing school throughout its existence.
- · Journal articles
- · Books
- · In-house documents
- Personal interviews with retired faculty
- 50th Anniversary history on the school of nursing.
- These materials are accessible to the public; get in touch with the contact person.

Yukon

Dawson City Museum & Historical Society (Dawson City, Yukon)

Contact: Susan Parsons ph: (867) 9935291 fax: (867) 9935839

email: dcmuseum@yknet.yk.ca

P.O. Box 303

Dawson City, Yukon

Y0B 1G0

Materials in Possession:

- · Photos
- · Books
- · Resource Files
- The public has access to the materials at the museum; they are catalogued, and there are finding aids.

National Associations

Archives for the History of Psychiatry and Mental Health Services (Toronto, Ontario)

Contact: John Court ph: (416) 5358501 ext. 2172

email: jcourt@camh.net

Archives for the History of Canadian Psychiatry and Mental Health Services

Centre for Addiction and Mental Health

1001 Queen Street West

Toronto, Ontario

M6J 1H4

Materials in Possession:

- Canadian Mental Health Association Records, including documentation of many of its projects and programs such as More for the Mind and One Million Children
- Toronto General Hospital Nervous Ward case files (1907 1927), the first psychiatric unit in Canada to be established in a general hospital (access restricted)
- · Clarence Meredith Hincks (1885 1964) Papers. Hincks was the internationally known

Director of the CMHA for 30 years.

- Documentary History Manuscripts, created by Drs. John D. M. Griffin and Cyril Greenland in preparing a history of Canadian psychiatry.
- Biographies and reference files on people and places that influenced the development of mental health services in Canada.
- · Photographs
- Oral histories
- Reference Collection
- There is approx. 500 linear feet of materials that are accessible to the public, (Thurs. Fri. 9:30am 4:30pm, or by appointment). The holdings have been partly catalogued, and there are some finding aids.

Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses - Canada

(Calgary, Alberta)

Contact: Karen MacKinnon ph: (403) 2406863

email: kmackinnon@mtroyal.ab.ca

Centre for Health Studies

Mount Royal College

4825 Richard Road SW

Calgary, Alberta

T3E 6K6

Materials in Possession:

The materials in their possession are limited, but there is information on Canadian obstetric, gynecologic, and neonatal nursing. Get in touch with the contact person for more information.

ph: (403) 2402368

fax: (403) 2427241

Canadian Association of Nurses in Independent Practice (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Betty Gourlay	
1017, 3240 - 66 Avenue SW	

Calgary, Alberta

T3E 6M5

- Materials in Possession:
- Minutes of Meetings
- · AGM proceedings
- · Financial statements
- Membership records
- · Correspondence
- · Photos
- These materials are not accessible to the public and are not catalogued. The materials are sorted by year, though, and are considered useful in studying aspects of how nursing practice is changing over time.

Canadian Association of University Schools of Nursing (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Wendy McBride ph: (613) 5631236 email: causn@cyberus.ca 350 Albert St. Suite 325 Ottawa, Ontario K1R 1B1

Materials in Possession:

Maintain several databases:

Educational Database - lists all degree granting schools, contact info., types of programs offered, length of program, etc.

International Linkages Database - contains info relating to those schools which maintain international collaborations with off shore nursing programs. Resource Directory of International Health Experts - lists a statistical package which collects and publishes annually, the number of students enrolled and graduated in various types of nursing programs across the country.

Canadian Home Care Association (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Pamela Martin ph: (613) 5691585

email: pmartin@cdnhomecare.on.ca

17 York St. Suite 401 Ottawa, Ontario M5S 3A2

Materials in Possession:

- The resources, in the Canadian Home Care Association Resource Centre, deal primarily with the various aspects of home care, and home care nurses in Canada. The materials focus on standards and human resource issues.
- Resources can be borrowed from the resource centre, for three week periods, by members only. If an individual, who is not a member, wants to borrow materials, it will cost that individual \$50 in addition to the charges for copying, shipping, and handling. These resources are catalogued, and the catalogue is updated annually.

Canadian Nurses Association (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Brenda Shestowsky ph: (613) 2372133 fax: (613) 2373520

email: bshestowsky@cna-nurses.ca 50 Driveway

Ottawa, Ontario

K2P 1E2

Material in Possession:

- There are hundreds of feet of materials in the association's collection; these include audio visual materials, gifts on display, theses, uniforms, photos, schools pins on display, caps in display case, uniform in display case, ICN display, and President's photos.
- The Helen K. Mussallem Fonds an extensive collection of materials regarding the CNA and other nursing related areas. These fonds are so extensive that there is a guide for

these fonds alone.

- Information regarding various nursing associations, French nurses, information regarding the operation of the CNA, and various nursing councils. All of these are listed in the Guide to the Historical Collections of the Canadian Nurses Association.
- All of these materials are accessible to the public. They have been catalogued and there are finding aids available.

National Emergency Nurses Affiliation (Dartmouth, Nova Scotia)

Contact: Valerie Eden ph: (902) 4623708

email: nstn1282@fox.nstn.ca

114 LaPierre Crescent

Dartmouth, Nova Scotia B2W 5C9

Materials in Possession:

- Copies of Board of Director Meeting minutes
- Copies of Annual General Meeting minutes
- Provincial reports and financial statements that were handed out at each BOD meeting.
- The National Emergency Nurses Affiliation archives are a little unorganized at this time, but these materials are still there for use.

Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons Canada (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Michael Thibault ph: (613) 7308177 ext. 341 fax: (613) 7302410

email: michael.thibault@rcpsc.edu 774 Echo Drive

Ottawa, Ontario

K1S 5N8

Materials in Possession:

- Diploma Canadian National Exhibition address of tribute and honour to the nursing sisters of the Canadian Expeditionary Forces Miss Margaret McDonald, Matron-In-Chief...September 1st, 1921.
- Diploma, Royal Victoria Hospital...that Irene Wishart has completed...training for nurses...Montreal, 1906.
- Photograph of a grouped of unidentified nurses, found in Dr.. Warren Lyman's attic
- In total, there is .25 linear feet worth of material. The information has been catalogued, and there are finding aids, but there are not currently procedures in place to provide public access to the holdings.

Urology Nurses of Canada (Ottawa, Ontario)

Contact: Susan Madden ph: (613) 7985555 ext. 3945 email: smadden@ottawahospital.on.ca Clinical Nurse Educator D Main Surgery Ottawa Civic Hospital 1053 Carling Avenue Ottawa, Ontario K1Y 4E9

Materials in Possession:

- Membership records, constitution, annual reports, minutes of meetings, discussion questions, publications, news and events, and educational material.
- Only some of these materials are available for public use.
- To find out more about the UNC, look up their web page: <u>http://www.unc.org</u>

II. Hospital and Nursing School Alumnae Associations

Brandon General Hospital (Brandon, Manitoba) Contact: Kathryn Hyndman ph: (204) 7262278

Charlottetown Hospital School of Nursing (Charlottetown, PEI)Contact: Genevieve MacDonaldph: (902) 5692333

Dalhousie University School of Nursing (Halifax, Nova Scotia) Contact: The President of Alumni Hall ph: (902) 4942071

Grace Hospital (Winnipeg, Manitoba) Contact: Michaela Ori ph: (204) 8329467

Health Sciences Centre (Winnipeg, Manitoba) Contact: Marilyn Hogg ph: (204) 7871110

Misericordia Hospital (Winnipeg, Manitoba) Contact: Donna Dunford ph: (204) 7746581

Montreal General Hospital School of Nursing (Montreal, Quebec) Contact: Phyllis Hanercraft Alumnae Association of the Montreal General Hospital School of Nursing Dept. of Nursing Montreal General Hospital 1650 Cedar Avenue Montreal, Quebec H3G 1A4

Prince Edward Island Hospital School of Nursing (Charlottetown, PEI) Contact: Joyce England ph: (902) 3683764 St. Boniface General Hospital (St. Boniface, Manitoba) Contact: Rita Wadell ph: (204) 2565056

University of Calgary Faculty of Nursing (Calgary, Alberta) Contact: Arlene Johnston ph: (403) 2810733

III. Guides to Archival Resources Already Published

Directory of Nursing Archival Resources in Alberta (1996)

by Lorraine Mychajlunow & Sharon Richardson

Lorraine Mychajlunow ph: (780) 4510043 fax: (780) 4523276 Alberta Association of Registered Nurses 11620 - 168 Street Edmonton, Alberta T5M 4A6

<u>Contents:</u> Introduction How to use the Directory Map Location Index Archives and Educational Agencies Health Care Agencies Subject Index

<u>Guide to Archival Resources for Psychiatric Mental Health Nursing History in Alberta</u> (1999)

by Geertje Boschma, Lorraine Mychajlunow, and Olive Young

Lorraine Mychajlunow ph: (780) 4510043 Alberta Association of Registered Nurses fax: (780) 4523276 11620 - 168 Street Edmonton, Alberta T5M 4A6

<u>Contents:</u> Introduction How to use the guide Location Index Archives and Educational Agencies Mental Health Care Organizations and Agencies Subject Index

Survey of Nursing History Material in British Columbia (1990)

by The Registered Nurses Association of British Columbia

History of Nursing Professional Practice group c/o RNABC 2855 Arbutus Street Vancouver, B.C. V6J 3Y8

<u>Contents:</u> Introduction Archives, Museums, Libraries: Survey Results Hospitals: Survey Results Index Archives, Museums, Libraries: Survey List Hospitals: Survey List

A Guide to Health Care History Materials in New Brunswick (1998)

by Gillian Liebenberg and Arlee Hoyt McGee

Acadiensis Press cost: \$16 (includes tax & shipping) **Campus House** University of New Brunswick Fredericton, New Brunswick E3B 5A8 Contents: Acronyms Preface Survey Guide to Survey Introduction Hospitals, Nursing Schools, Health Centres and Nursing Homes Community Agencies, Professional and Voluntary, and Alumnae Government Departments: Public Health Archives and Museums Libraries **Private Collections** Selected Bibliography Glossary Ouestionnaire Index

User Form

A Guide To Nursing Historical Materials In Ontario (1994)

by Kathleen MacMillan & Judith Young Judith Young, RN ph: (416) 4880597 355 Millwood Rd. Toronto, ON. M4S 1J9

50 St. George Street Toronto, Ontario M5S 1A1

Contents:

How to use this Guide Collections:

Public Listings

Hospitals, Long Term Care, and Nursing Alumnae Community Agencies: Public Health Units and Visiting Nurse Agencies Schools of Nursing Nursing Associations and Agencies Archives Libraries Museums and Art Galleries Non-Nursing Associations and Agencies Religious Communities and Denominations

Private Listings

Indices:

Subject Index Collections and Name Index Public Listing Index Institutions, Agencies, Associations Surveyed, - Report No holdings Additions and Revisions Form

IV. Institutions Surveyed That Did Not Respond

<u>Alberta</u> Alberta Health Records City of Edmonton Archives City of Lethbridge Archives Fort Calgary Health Resources - Grey Nuns Hospital Heritage Park Historical Village Queen Elizabeth II Foundation Archives Red Deer and District Archives Sturgeon Community Health Centre University of Alberta Archives University of Lethbridge Archives

British Columbia British Columbia Medical Association Archives Campbell River Museum & Archives Chilliwack Archives City of Richmond Archives City of White Rock Museum and Archives Kamloops Museum and Archives Kelowna Museum Mission Community Archives Nanaimo Community Archives Simon Fraser University Archives Victoria Medical Society Archives

<u>Manitoba</u> Archives des Soeurs Grises Societe historique de Saint-Boniface

<u>New Brunswick</u> University of New Brunswick Archives and Special Collections

<u>Newfoundland</u> Dr. Charles A. Janeway Child Health Centre Newfoundland Nurse's Alumni Association Provincial Archives of Newfoundland and Labrador <u>Nova Scotia</u> Nova Scotia Nursing History Association

<u>Ontario</u>

Brant County Museum and Archives Canadian Red Cross Canadian Woman's Archives Chancellor Paterson Library Archives - Lakehead University City of Etobicoke Archives City of Ottawa Archives City of Thunder Bay Archives City of Toronto Archives City of Vaughan Archives George Brown College Archives Hamilton Academy of Medicine, Medical Museum **Kingston General Hospital Archives** Metropolitan Toronto Archives Municipal Archives - Windsor public Library Ottawa Hospital Providence Continuing Care Centre Queen's University Archives Regional Municipality of Ottawa-Carleton Archives St. Michael's Hospital Archives Thunder Bay Historical Museum Society

<u>Prince Edward Island</u> PEI Public Archives and Records Office PEI Regiment Museum

Quebec

Archives de la ville de Quebec Archives des Ursulines de Quebec Archives municipales de la ville de Hull Archives nationales du Quebec - Montreal Archives nationales du Quebec - Sainte-Foy Centre d'archives de la Gaspesie Ordres des infirmieres et infirmiers du Quebec Osler Library of the History of Medicine Soeurs Augustines de la misericorde du Jesus, hotel-Dieu de Quebec Soeurs de la Charite de Quebec Societe d'histoire de Sherbrooke Societe d'histoire du Haut-Richelieu Societe d'histoire du Lac-Saint-Jean Universite Laval - Division des archives

<u>Saskatchewan</u> City of Saskatoon Archives Local History Room, Saskatoon Public Library Moose Jaw Public Library Archives

Nursing Associations

Registered Nurses Association of Ontario Saskatchewan Registered Nurses' Association Yukon Registered Nurses Association Aboriginal Nurses' Association of Canada Academy of Canadian Executive Nurses Canadian Association of Burn Nurses Canadian Association for Enterostomal Therapy Canadian Association of Nephrology Nurses and Technologists Canadian Association of Neuroscience Nurses Canadian Association of Nurses in AIDS Care Canadian Association of Nurses in Hemophilia Care Canadian Association of Nurses in Oncology Canadian Association of Pediatric Nurses Canadian Council of Cardiovascular Nurses Canadian Holistic Nurses Association Canadian Nurses' Respiratory Society Canadian Nursing Coalition for Immunization Canadian Nursing Students Association Canadian Orthopedic Nurse Association Canadian Palliative Care Association Canadian Society of Gastroenterology Nurses and Associates Canadian Society of Ophthalmic Registered Nurses Community Health nurses Association of Canada Global Health Interest Group Health Communication Unit at the Centre of Health Promotion International Consortium of Parse Scholars Nurses' Christian Fellowship Committee of Canada Operating Room Nurses' Association of Canada Psychiatric Nurses' Association of Canada Dalhousie University School of Nursing Universite de Moncton Ecole des sciences infirmieres University of New Brunswick Faculty of Nursing Universite Laval Faculte des sciences infirmieres

Universite de Sherbrooke Departement des sciences infirmieres Universite du Quebec a Hull Module des sciences de la sante Universite du Quebec a Rimouski Module des sciences de la sante Universite du Quebec en Abitibi-Temiscamingue Universite du Quebec a Chicoutimi Module des sciences de la sante Universite du Quebec a Trois-Rivieres Module des sciences infirmieres University of Toronto Faculty of Nursing Ryerson Polytechnic University School of Nursing Atkinson College, York University Department of Nursing University of Windsor School of Nursing Lakehead University Brandon University School of Health Studies University of Lethbridge School of Health Sciences University of British Columbia School of Nursing University of Northern British Columbia Nursing program University College of the Caribou School of Nursing Okanagan University College Nursing Program Trinity Western University Nursing Department

V. City Index

Amherst, Nova Scotia 20	Owen Sound, Ontario		24	
Antigonish, Nova Scotia	21	Peterborough, Ontario	29	
Arnprior, Ontario	22	Regina, Saskatchewan	36	
Barkerville, B. C.	8	Rouyn-Noranda, Quebec		35
Bayfield, Ontario	23	St. Catherine's, Ontario		29
Burlington, Ontario	23	Saint John, New Brunswick		18
Calgary, Alberta	1, 2, 3, 7,	St. John's, Newfoundland		19
	8, 39			
		Saskatoon, Saskatchewan		37
Charlottetown, P. E. I.33, 42	Sault S	Ste. Marie, Ontario	30	
Creston, B. C.	10	Sherbrooke, Quebec		35
Cumberland, B. C.	10	Stratford, Ontario		30
Dartmouth, Nova Scotia	41	Surrey, B. C.		9
Dawson City, Yukon	38	Taber, Alberta	6	
Edmonton, Alberta	1, 2, 3	Toronto, Ontario		22, 23, 25,
				31, 32, 38
Fredericton, N.B.	17	Trois-Rivieres, Quebec		34
Guelph, Ontario	25	Vancouver, B. C.		9, 11, 14
Halifax, Nova Scotia	21, 42	Vernon, B. C.		15
Hamilton, Ontario	26	Victoria, B. C.		8, 10, 14, 15
Kingston, Ontario	29, 30	Winnipeg, Manitoba		15, 16, 42
London, Ontario	33	Woodstock, Ontario		33
Montreal, Quebec	35, 42	Yellowknife, N. W. T.		20
Napanee, Ontario	25			
Ottawa, Ontario	26, 28, 31, 39	,		
	40, 41			